
 

 

Working on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council 
and Gloucestershire County Council       

            
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
MEETING PAPERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
 
Tuesday 22 October 2013 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

Date Published:14 October 2013       

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

 

Tuesday 22nd October, 2013 at 1.30 pm 

AGENDA 

   

   

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 

The Chairman to welcome everyone to the meeting.  
 

Chairman 

2 APOLOGIES  
 

To receive apologies for absence. 
 

Chairman 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

To note any declarations of interest. 
 

Chairman 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting on 31 July 2013. (Minutes 
attached).  
 

Chairman 

5 PROCUREMENT OPTIONS FOR THE TREATMENT OF FOOD AND 
GARDEN WASTE  
 

An update from Head of Service, Steve Read, on the Gloucestershire 
County Council’s Cabinet decision relating to the procurement options for 
the treatment of food and garden waste for Gloucestershire. 
 

Steve Read 
Head of Service 

6 DRAFT PRESS AND PUBLICITY PROTOCOL (Pages 9 - 18) 
 

To agree the Draft Press and Publicity Protocol. (Document attached).  
 

Steve Read 
Head of Service 

7 OVERVIEW OF SEVERE WEATHER ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 19 - 22) 
 

To be advised of the arrangements which have been put in place to 
address severe weather conditions.   
 

Steve Read 
Head of Service 
 

8 OUTLINE DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN  
 

To consider the Draft Business Plan (document to follow). 
 

Steve Read 
Head of Service 
 



 

 

     

 

   

9 WORK PLAN  
 

To suggest items for consideration at future meetings.  
 

 
Chairman 

10 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

Tuesday 22 October 2013 at 11.00 am 
 
Thursday 19 December 2013 at 11.00 am 
 
Tuesday 11 February 2014 at 11.00 am 
 
Tuesday 1 April 2014 at 11.00 am 
 
Tuesday 10 June 2014 at 11.00 am 

 

 
Chairman 

 
      COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP: 

§ Cheltenham: Cllr Roger Whyborn; Cllr Steve Jordan  

§ Cotswolds: Cllr David Fowles; Cllr Barry Gibbs  

§ Forest of Dean: Cllr Martin Quaile; Cllr Terry Hale 

§ Gloucestershire County Council: Cllr Ray Theodoulou; Cllr Stan Waddington 
 

  
(a) 
 

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 (b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Joanne Moore, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny 
Team) �:01452 425005/fax: 425850/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

   

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee meeting held in the Members' 
Room at Shire Hall, Gloucester at 2.30 pm on Wednesday 31 July 2013. 

 
 
Attendance: Members 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council     GCC 
Cllr Steve Jordan      Cllr Stan Waddington 
Jane Griffiths       Cllr Ray Theodoulou 
  
Cotswold District Council     Forest Of Dean District Council 
Cllr David Fowles      Cllr Martin Quaile   
Claire Locke       Cllr Terry Hale   
        Peter Hibberd  
 
 
Attendance: Others  
Gordon Buchanan (Gloucester City Council) 
Tony Childs (Joint Waste Team) 
Julie Davies (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Ray Figg (Gloucester City Council) 
Val Garside (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Cllr Jim Mason (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
Clle Sajid Patel (Gloucester City Council) 
Cllr Simon Pickering (Gloucester City Council) 
Steve Read (Joint Waste Team) 
Cllr Robert Vines (Tewkesbury Borough Council) 
 
   
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

Steve Read, Designated Head of Service, welcomed everyone to the first meeting 
of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee.   

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

 
Councillor Martin Quaile, (Forest of Dean District Council), was elected Chairman of 
the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. Proposed by Councillor Ray 
Theodoulou; Seconded by Councillor Stan Waddington.  
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN  
 

In his absence, Councillor Roger Whyborn, (Cheltenham Borough Council), was 
elected Vice Chairman of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. Proposed by 
Councillor Martin Quaile; Seconded by Councillor Stan Waddington. Councillor 
Steve Jordan, (Cheltenham Borough Council), agreed to notify Councillor Whyborn 
of the appointment.   

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

4. APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies were received from: Councillor Roger Whyborn, (Cheltenham Borough 
Council); Councillor Barry Gibbs, (Cotswold District Council), Ross Cook, 
(Gloucester City Council); Jo Walker, (Gloucestershire County Council), and Andy 
Pritchard and Scott Williams of the Joint Waste Team. 
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor Ray Theodoulou, declared a personal interest in the meeting as Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Change at Gloucestershire County Council, and as a 
Cotswold District Councillor.  

 
6. MINUTES  

 

The minutes of the Shadow Joint Waste Board Meeting on 7 March 2013 were 
confirmed and agreed as a correct record of that meeting.  

 
7. GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE PARTNERSHIP - END OF PROGRAMME 

REPORT  
 

Peter Hibberd, (Strategic Director at Forest of Dean District Council), presented the 
concluding report for the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Programme. The report 
signified the final chapter in the establishment of the new committee, and made 
references to the successes of the programme; an acknowledgement of lessons 
learnt; key observations, and the transfer of issues from the outgoing Shadow Joint 
Waste Board to the new committee.  

In presenting the report, Peter Hibberd was able to confirm no outstanding 
elements of risk; nor any significant issues other than those that would form part of 
the work of the new committee. On noting this position, it was suggested that the 
proposal to accept the issues and risks for management by the committee was no 
longer a requirement, and that the committee consider deleting part b) of the 
recommendation. This was agreed, and the committee;  

RESOLVED to  

a) accept the report,  
 

b) delete the proposal to accept the issues and risks for management by the 
committee 

Having completed the transfer of responsibility to the Joint Waste Committee, 
tributes were made to Shadow Board Member, Ralph Young (Cotswold District 
Council) and to Programme Manager, Andrew Logan, for their invaluable 
contributions to completing the programme. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

8. APPROVAL OF THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE JOINT WASTE COMMITTEE 
BUSINESS PLAN 2013/16  

Steve Read, Head of Service for the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team, presented 
the First Joint Business Plan of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, 
(covering the period 2013 to 2016), and reminded members that, earlier in the year, 
the Shadow Board had endorsed a draft version of the plan. Subject to a few slight 
changes, the Head of Service proposed that the committee adopt the updated 
version of the plan as the mandate from which to consider the committee’s key 
priorities and actions for the next five years, and from which to make its decisions in 
accordance with governance and budgetary principles on behalf of the participating 
authorities. One change related to adoption of the title ‘Joint Waste Team’ for Joint 
Waste Management Unit.  

As a requirement of the Inter Authority Agreement, the business plan will help 
formulate decisions concerning the recycling, waste collection and street cleansing 
services for the three representative district and borough councils of Cheltenham 
Borough Council, Cotswold District Council and Forest of Dean District Council, and 
in delivering household recycling centres, waste treatment and disposal for the 
County Council.  

The Head of Service gave a verbal update on the current position of the appeal by 
Urbaser Balfour Beatty against the refusal of a planning application for an energy-
to-waste facility at Javelin Park. A Planning Inquiry would be held in late autumn, 
with recommendations from the Planning Inspector to the Secretary of State in the 
New Year. The Secretary of State’s decision is not anticipated until the summer of 
2014.   

Outlining the key priorities for the period 2013/14 and referring to the budgetary 
framework as set in the Inter Authority Agreement, the Head of Service suggested 
that the Joint Waste Committee meetings be held around specific months of the 
year from which a formal business forward plan would be set up and updated. It 
was noted that the next draft budget would be considered at a meeting in 
December, with approval of the final budget and business plan for 2014/19, in 
February 2014. Any points raised in relation to the current plan would be carried 
forward to the next plan.  

Referring members to the appendices attached to the end of the report; 1 (Business 
Plan 2013-16); 2 (Action Plan); 3A (Risk Register) and 3B (Risk Register Matrix), 
the Head of Service moved the recommendations for the plan as presented at this 
meeting, and the committee,  

RESOLVED to  

a) Adopt the Business Plan, Action Plan and Risk Register;  

 

b) Accept the issues and risks for management by the committee, and   

 

c) Provide any suggestions for improvement or inclusion in the Draft Plan 

2014-17 

Proposed by Councillor Ray Theodoulou; Seconded by Cllr Steve Jordan 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

9. PROCUREMENT OPTIONS FOR THE TREATMENT OF FOOD AND GARDEN 
WASTE  
 
Steve Read, Head of Service for the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team, presented 

a shortened version of the presentation he had given at the previous meeting, 

regarding the procurement strategy for food waste and co-mingled food and garden 

waste in Gloucestershire. Noting the recommendations referred to during the 

previous meeting, the Head of Service said that the committee’s decision would be 

considered at the cabinet meeting in September, followed by commencement of the 

procurement and completion of the tendering process by October 2014.  

 

Several members expressed concern about the proposed percentage splits and 

criteria of the evaluation framework at table 4.2 of the report. One member 

suggested that the split be changed from 40/60 per cent to 50/50 per cent, and that 

recommend b) of the proposals be amended to reflect this decision. Proposed by 

Councillor Steve Jordan; Seconded by Councillor Stan Waddington.  A vote was 

taken and members agreed to amend the split from 40/60 to 50/50 per cent.  

 

On voting on the recommendations, (as amended), the committee,  

 

RESOLVED to: -  

 

a) Endorse the food and garden waste procurement strategy set out in this 
report to deliver treatment capacity (in-vessel composting and/or 
anaerobic digestion) for Gloucestershire’s municipal food and co-mingled 
food and garden waste; 
 

b) Endorse the evaluation framework outlined in the report and propose a 
preferred approach to Gloucestershire County Council to commence 
procurement and invite tenders for the treatment of Gloucestershire’s 
municipal food and co-mingled food and garden waste; and 

 

c) Request Gloucestershire County Council to delegate authority to the Joint 
Waste Team Head of Service in consultation with Gloucestershire County 
Council’s Strategic Finance Director and Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Change, and the Chairman of the Joint Waste Committee to make 
amendments to the evaluation criteria, provided these do not materially 
affect the general strategic approach recommended by the Joint Waste 
Committee. 

 
10. DELEGATION TO HEAD OF SERVICE  

 
Head of Service, Steve Read, presented the Scheme of Delegation that had been 
circulated with the agenda, and advised members that, in accordance with 
Regulation II of the Local Authorities, Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions 
(England) Regulations 2000, the Joint Waste Committee was able to delegate any 
of its functions to a sub-committee or officer.  
 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

Having considered the Scheme of Delegation in detail, the committee: -  
 

RESOLVED to delegate to the Head of Service:  

 

1) Authority to act on behalf of the Joint Waste Committee, or any sub-
committee of the Joint Waste Committee, in managing the staff and services 
for which the Head of Service is responsible under the Inter Authority 
Agreement for providing to the Joint Waste Committee and for all related 
decisions which are not “significant decisions” as defined hereunder; 
 

2) Authority to act on behalf of the Joint Waste Committee in relation to the 
management and supervision of contracts entered into by the Administering 
Authority on behalf of the Committee and further,    
 

RESOLVED that:  

 

3) Any such authority may be exercised by the Waste Services Manager in the 
absence of the Head of Service in accordance with any general directions of 
the Head of Service; 
  

4) Any action taken under these delegated powers shall be in accordance with: 
 

a) the overall policies approved by the Joint Waste Committee; 

 

b) the terms of the Inter Authority Agreement and the Constitution of the 

Committee; 

 

c) the Standing Orders and Rules of Procedure of Gloucestershire County 

Council; and,  

 

d) all appropriate legal provisions. 

 

The exercise of any delegated power subject to: 
 
e) Consultation, as appropriate, with the Chairman of the Joint Waste 

Committee, or the Chairman of any relevant sub-committee of the 
Committee, (or in their absence the Vice-Chairman of the Joint Waste 
Committee or of the relevant sub-committee); and,  
  

f) Consultation, as appropriate, with the Committee Members for the 
Partner Authorities affected prior to the delegated power being 
exercised, and ensuring that they are advised of any relevant 
action/outcome, 
 

g) Consultation, as appropriate, with the Section 151 and/or Monitoring 
Officer of the Administering Authority, (or the equivalent advisor from 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

such other Partner Authority as appointed by the Joint Waste 
Committee in accordance with the Inter Authority Agreement),  

 
h) Consultation, as appropriate, with the Corporate Director(s) of the 

Partner Authorities affected and/or the Administering Authority. 
 

Before exercising any delegated power, the Head of Service or other relevant 
officer must consider whether the decision to be made is of such a nature that it 
ought to be referred for decision to the Joint Waste Committee or to the relevant 
sub-committee.  
 
This delegation shall continue in force until revoked by the Committee.  
 

Note: Significant Decisions 

A “significant decision” is an executive decision that is likely to; 
 

a)  Result in the Joint Waste Committee, and/or a Partner Authority, 
incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, 
significant having regard to the Committee’s or a partner authority’s 
budget for the service or function to which the decision relates;  

 

b) Be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in 
an area comprising two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area 
of the Partner Authorities; 

 

c) Significantly affect the service being carried for each of the Partner 
Authorities; or,  

 

d) Involve a procurement of a service for the Joint Waste Committee 
 
 

11. WORK PLAN  
 

The following items were suggested as possible items to add to the committee work 
plan:-  

1) Press/Publicity Protocol  
  

2) Communications  
 

3) Collection of cardboard and plastics  
 

4) Student waste collections 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

Following concerns about having to suspend the Gloucestershire Waste 

Partnership meeting for this meeting to commence, it was suggested that a review 

of the arrangements for both meetings should be made, with a proposal that the 

first meeting take place mid morning, followed by a refreshment break and the 

second meeting later the same day.  

The committee agreed that Jo Moore (GCC Democratic Services Unit) should 

circulate an email inviting representatives from both meetings to state their 

preferred arrangements. Action by - Democratic Services  

The following dates were suggested as possible meeting dates for the Joint Waste 

Committee for the remainder of 2013 and during 2014: -  

22 October 2013 

19 December 2013 

11 February 2014 

17 April 2014 

10 June 2014 

 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
 
Meeting concluded at 4.10 pm 
 
Minutes by Jo Moore (Democratic Services) 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

Draft Press and Publicity Protocol  

 

Committee Date  Tuesday 22 October 2013 

 
 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

 

Purpose of Report This document outlines how the Gloucestershire Joint Waste 

Committee (JWC) through its Joint Waste Team (JWT) relates with the 

press, media and communication to the public via third party 

publications.  

Recommendation  The committee to: -   

a) note the report, and 

b) agree a Press and Publicity Protocol 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft For JWC Approval 22 October 2013 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  
Press and Publicity Protocol 
 
1. Purpose of this document 
 
This document outlines how the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
(JWC) through its Joint Waste Team (JWT) relates with the press, media and 
communication to the public via third party publications. It sets out: 
 

a) The principles on which communications with the press and media are 
based. 

b) The processes the JWT follows when communicating with the press 
and media. 

c) The boundaries of responsibility between the JWC and the partners 
authorities  

d) The boundaries of responsibilities between the JWC and the wider 
Gloucestershire Waste Partnership which includes all 6 
Gloucestershire Districts and the County Council.  

e) The roles and responsibilities of individuals and the JWT that underpin 
those processes and enable the JWC and JWTJWC to communicate 
successfully with the public and with its partners. 

 
2. Principles 
 

a) The JWT will aim to be, within the legitimate constraints of respecting 
commercial and personal confidentiality, open, honest, accurate, timely 
and engaging when dealing with press media queries and requests for 
information. 

b) The JWT will aim to provide a single point of contact for (delegated) 
waste issues affecting the JWC partners and/or signposting enquirers 
to other sources as appropriate. 

c) The JWT will provide a unified approach which aims to show all 
partners and the partnership in a positive light. 

d) The JWT Head of Service or a member of the Senior Management 
Team (SMT) will normally field press or media enquiries unless 
determined otherwise by the Head of Service in consultation with the 
relevant SMG Director.   SMT is (October 2013) made up of Steve 
Read, Tony Childs, Scott Williams, Rachel Capon and Andy Pritchard   

e) Unless the issue concerns just one district/borough or part thereof, or 
otherwise agreed by both parties.  GCC’s (as the administering 
authority for the JWC) press team will assist the JWT and disseminate 
press releases.  

f) If the issue concerns just one district/borough, the dissemination of 
press releases will be undertaken by the press team of the authority 
concerned unless otherwise agreed by both parties.  

Page 11



3. Responding to press and media enquiries 
 
The process to be followed in most circumstances is outlined as a flowchart in 
Appendix 1. 
 
3.1  General 
To ensure consistency, all press and media enquiries on waste and recycling 
should in the first instance be directed to a member of the SMT at the JWT, 
who will record receipt and actions taken. If any press or FoI unit receives a 
query directly from a journalist, they should in every instance refer the 
journalist to the JWT.  Requests made under the Freedom of Information Act 
will be handled using each Partners procedure but will include consultation 
with SMT to ensure no duplication and consistent replies.  
 
A list of functions that are linked to waste and recycling and which the partner 
councils have responsibility for are detailed in Appendix 1 of this paper. 
 
The JWT does not have a press officer but members of SMT will usually field 
enquiries relating to their geographical or expertise area. 
 
 
3.2  Interviews 
The decision as to who is the most relevant person to undertake interviews 
depends on the availability of Officers and Councillors, the urgency of the 
request and the sensitivity of the subject matter.   
 
For high priority, high profile or otherwise sensitive issues the Head of Service 
(or deputising member of SMT) will consult with the Chair and /or Vice Chair 
of the JWC as to who is the appropriate person to front.  
 
The JWT will assist in briefing the fronting person by providing background, 
statistics or other relevant material. In instances where the issue is neither 
controversial nor sensitive, a member of the SMT may provide an interview or 
arrange for another appropriate JWT or SMG officer to do so. 
 
Members or officers who are requested to communicate with the media 
should: 

a) Make sure that they are fully briefed prior to making contact. 
b) Contact the media concerned as quickly as possible. 
c) Report back to the JWT following any discussion, interview or 

other communication with a journalist. 
 
 
4. Press releases 
 
4.1  General 
 
Press releases on all waste and recycling matters of JWC responsibility will be 
drafted by the JWT unless agreed in advance with one of the partner 
authorities. 

Page 12



 

Press releases will be written by the most appropriate officer (which may be 
one of the GCC press team) and signed off by the Head of Service, or in his 
absence, the most appropriate member of the SMT.  
 

Press Releases will normally be distributed by the GCC’s press team on 
behalf of the JWC unless it is a single district issue in which case press 
releases will be issued by the relevant District/Borough press team (see 
section 2. “Principles” above).  
 

The PR teams from all four Councils that make up the JWC will receive an 
electronic copy of all press releases sent out from the JWC.  When likely to be 
of on-going and wider interest, they will normally also be posted on the 
relevant partner’s website.  In instances where a press release names an 
individual partner council (other than the standard wording explaining the 
JWC), that press release will be signed off by that council using the internal 
process of that council. 
 
Press releases will also routinely be sent electronically to Members of the 
JWC within 48 hours of the press release being issued. 
 
A JWC press release template will be used when issuing releases.  Whenever 
possible this will include the GWT logo at the top right of the release.  No 
other logos will be used.    
 
Within press releases a standard explanation of the Gloucestershire Joint 
Waste Partnership will be included in the Notes to Editors as follows: 
 
The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership provides waste and recycling 
services on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 
 
4.2 Quotations 
 
Press releases will normally include a quote from either the Chair or Vice 
Chair of the JWC. 
 
Where the release relates to waste collection matters within a specific District 
or Borough, a quote will normally also be included from the Portfolio Holder for 
that Council; and where the release relates to Household Recycling Centres 
or waste disposal matters, a quote will normally be included from the Portfolio 
Holder for the County Council. 
 
On some occasions it may be relevant to include a quote from a member of 
the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, the Head of Service or other 
JWTJWC officer or from a JWC contractor (where relevant). In accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, quotes must not be party political, or 
attack the policies or opinions of other parties, groups or individuals.  
 

Page 13



5.    Monitoring of media coverage 
 
The JWTJWC will use Gloucestershire County Council’s media monitoring 
system to keep track of media coverage.  The JWT will pay for the ‘picking up’ 
of articles that refer to the “Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership”, the 
“Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee”, “Joint Waste Team” or are 
otherwise connected to the activities and sphere of the partnership. 
  
 
6. Media relations in exceptional circumstances 
 
“Purdah Period” Prior to Elections 
 
All proactive publicity involving candidates, political parties and politicians 
involved directly with an election will cease from the issue of the notice of an 
election until after the result is formally announced. During this period, any 
publicity will not deal with views, proposals or recommendations in any way 
that identifies them with individuals, groups or parties involved in the election.  
 
 
7. Liaison with partner councils 
 
7.1     Planning and reporting 
 
The JWT will provide a quarterly update report on communication matters, 
including media coverage obtained during the quarter. 
 
The JWC will produce a Publicity and Promotion Plan as part of the annual 
Business Planning Process.  This will be made available to partnership 
councils for their comments and input prior to being submitted to the 
Committee for final approval. 
 
7.2 Meetings and liaison 

 
Officers of the JWT will meet with partner councils’ PR Officers on a regular 
basis to discuss communication and PR issues.  The timing and frequency of 
meetings will be determined in consultation with the Officers concerned.  
 
The JWT will notify partner councils’ press officers of any promotional 
activities within their area in advance. 
 
The partner councils will allow the JWC access to their internal and external 
communication channels.  In such cases, both the JWT and the relevant 
council will agree wording of articles (based on the guidelines within this 
document). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



8. Liaison with other GWP Partners  
 
Gloucester City, Stroud District and Tewkesbury Borough Councils are not 
currently part of the JWC. A continuing relationship between these three and 
the JWC is facilitated through the continuing Gloucestershire Waste 
Partnership (GWP). The JWT are the facilitating partner for the GWP.  
 
Unless agreed otherwise at a meeting of the GWP, the JWT will carry out any 
promotional activities where requested to by the GWP on its behalf and give 
advanced notification to GWP councils’ press officers of any promotional 
activities within their area. JWT officers will also work with other partnership 
waste officers to jointly develop and deliver these activities where appropriate. 
 
Unless agreed otherwise by the GWP, the JWT will, having consulted the 
appropriate GWP partners, respond to any press enquiries received 
concerning the GWP. 
 
In instances where a GWP press release names an individual partner council, 
that press release will be signed off by that council using the internal process 
of that council. Quotations will be sought from relevant elected members.  
 
Press releases will be written by the most appropriate officer (which may be 
one of the GCC press team) and signed off by the Head of Service, or in his 
absence, the most appropriate officer from either the JWT or relevant GWP 
partner(s).   
 
Press Releases will normally be distributed by the GCC’s press team on 
behalf of the GWP unless it is a single district issue in which case press 
releases will be issued by the relevant authorities’ press team. 
 
Press releases will also routinely be sent electronically to Members of the 
GWP within 48 hours of the press release being issued. 
 
9. Leaflets & literature 
 
All paper publications are to be printed on 100% post consumer recycled 
paper.   
 
The JWT logo is to appear on the front cover of all materials, unless otherwise 
agreed.  The Recycle Now (Recycle for Gloucestershire) iconography and 
styles will normally be incorporated on promotional materials in order to link in 
with the national campaign. 
 
The four logos of the JWCC partners will be included where relevant and 
where space permits (i.e. on larger newsletters and documents).  As a 
minimum, an explanatory statement about the JWC will be included.   
 
The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership provides waste and recycling 
services on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 

Page 15



 
 
10.   Branding and logos 
 
The JWC logo will be the lead logo on communication material. The partner 
councils’ logos will be used where the JWC deem relevant and where space 
permits (so that material is not “over branded”, and thus distracts the public 
away from the recycling / waste message). 
 

 
11.   Freedom of Information / Environmental Information Regulations 

Requests 

As Gloucestershire County Council is the administering authority for the JWC, 
the County Council’s Freedom of Information (FoI) and Environmental 
Information Regulations (EIR) processes will be adopted. 

If an FoI/EIR enquiry is received by a District/Borough for an in scope service, 
the partner council is requested to forward it to the JWT’s designated FoI / 
EIR co-ordinator and send a courtesy response to the enquirer (copying in the 
JWT’s FoI / EIR co-ordinator) explaining that the recycling and waste function 
is now overseen by the JWC, and that as such their enquiry has been 
forwarded to the JWT. 

The JWT’s FoI /EIR co-ordinator will liaise with Freedom of Information 
Officers in the relevant Council(s) and forward the query onto the relevant 
JWT officer, coordinate the response and provide the FoI / EIR co-ordinators 
in the relevant Council(s) with a response when this has been completed.  

Page 16



Appendix 1 
 

In order to assist outside agencies and for internal clarity, the table below lists 
the main functions and roles of the Joint Waste Team.  Also listed are the 
functions retained by the Cheltenham Borough, Cotswold District, Forest of 
Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 
 

Joint Waste Team Individual Council 

Waste Collection and Disposal supervision First call customer contact for in-scope services 
(including taking orders for charged services) 

Waste collection including; residual, 
recyclable, food, garden and bulky wastes. 

Procurement of the residual waste treatment 
facility 

Administration of charged services (including 
bulky waste, garden waste and commercial 
waste) 

Billing for charged services 

Municipal waste treatment and disposal Issuing of enforcement notices and fines 

Household Recycling Centres Legal matters 

Street Cleansing Commercial Waste Collection 

Waste Transfer Abandoned Vehicles Clearance 

Sale of dry recyclables Waste & Street Cleansing Enforcement 
(including for fly-tipping and abandoned 
vehicles) 

Bring site provision Procurement of / for in-scope services 

Monitoring and Inspection Issuing of notices and fines 

Fly-Tipping Clearance  

Clinical Waste Collection  

Sharps Waste Collection & Disposal  

Waste and Street Cleansing schools 
education 

 

Internal Resource and Budget Management  

Complaints/FOI/EIA 

Monitoring / Admin of Closed Landfills 

Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
(with GWP input)  

 
 

Page 17



Appendix 2 
 

Process for dealing with press enquiries. 
 

Press Enquiry to GCC , 
DC or JWMU 

In Scope? 
Refer to appropriate 

Unit 
NO 

NO 

YES

Request or proposal 
for a Press Release

Is press 
release

or statement  
needed? 

Appropriate response 
agreed with relevant 

comms team 

 

NO 

YES

JWT and GCC comms 
team prepare a draft

Obtain quote from 
Chair of GJWC or 
Portfolio Holder 

Member quote 
needed ? 

YES

Finalise Text 

Single authority 

issue? 

Individual authority 
comms team 
diseminate . 

YES

NO

Copy to relevant 
persons

GCC comms team 
disseminate

Draft shared with 

relevant partners for 
comment

Page 18



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

 

Overview Of Severe Weather Arrangements 

Committee Date  22 October 2013 

 

Significant 

Decision 

No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Joint Waste Team (01823 625707; 

steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 

Main Consultees 

 

Individual Collection Authorities 

Purpose of Report The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the severe 

weather (or other disruption) contingency arrangements put in place by 

the JWC authorities. 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: - 

Note and comment as appropriate on the overview of arrangements as 

described in the report. 

Resource 

Implications 

 

 

 

The additional costs involved in responding to severe weather 

disruption fall to the contractor. In the case of Ubico, this cost is borne 

by CBC and CDC. In all instances it is everyone’s interest to recover 

from the disruption as quickly as safely possible. 

Such disruption places pressure impacts on customer contact centres 

and the client and communications teams and this may displace other 

work and /or reduce response times. This impact is usually intense but 

short. If responses to events are managed effectively, so the impact on 

all concerned is shortened.    

While a degree of disruption in such circumstances will be accepted by 

the majority of residents, there are reputational risks to the JWC 

authorities if responses are seen to be unnecessarily delayed or 

protracted and/or if communication is unclear or inconsistent. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



1. Background 
  
(a) In January 2013 Gloucestershire experienced a spell of significant snowfall which 

caused disruption to Waste & Recycling collection services in Cotswold District, 
Cheltenham Borough and Forest of Dean areas. 

  
(b) Following the event a review was commissioned by the collection authorities to 

understand the issues surrounding how and why certain decisions were made and 
what lessons could be learnt in preparation for future spells of severe weather or 
similar disruption.  Officers from the Joint Waste Team have been supporting the 
Councils to conduct individual reviews and develop some general principles in the 
event of future disruption.  

  
(c) Each authority has differences in collection methodologies, vehicle configurations, 

tipping points, population density and/or topography. The magnitude and impact of 
disruptive weather events is also likely to be different across the county.   

  
(d) Severe weather disruption is therefore likely to affect collection services in different 

ways. These factors together will mean that the impact on residents may vary not 
only from district to district but also from round to round and day to day. Active 
response plans will therefore inevitably vary from council to council. It is however 
possible to ensure that basic principles are established in advance which aim to 
communicate consistently and minimise disruption.  

  
(e)  This report summarises the policies now in place for the JWC partners.   

 
  
2. General Principles - Collection 
  
(a) The following principles summarise the general common approach and policies for 

Cheltenham, Cotswold and Forest of Dean – the precise and detailed wording of 
the principles as expressed below may vary from partner to partner.  Detailed 
policies are included as appendices.  

  
 i. Guidelines for residents about what to do and expect in the event of snow 

and ice disrupting waste and recycling collection services will be available 
in advance of the winter and highlighted in the event of likely or actual 
event. 
 

 ii. Conditions will be assessed as early as possible on each morning of 
disruption in consultation with the contractors. Details of decisions taken will 
be publicised as soon as possible to call centres, staff, members, website 
editors and local press and media. 
  

 iii. Collections will be made on the scheduled collection day if they are 
accessible and it is safe to do so. 
 

 iv. If collections are missed, a catch up plan will be put in place so that crews 
will return as soon as conditions improve. The crews will work late and on 
Saturdays to operate the catch up plan.  
 

 v. On catch up priority will be given to refuse collections  
 
 

Page 20



 vi. Garden waste services may be suspended in order to use the resource to 
catch up with refuse collections   
 

 vii. Some restrictions – such as no side waste policies – will be suspended 
allowing resident who have missed a collection to place out extra refuse 
sacks for when collection is possible 
 

 viii. Updates will be publicised at least daily using websites as well as local and 
social media  

  
 

3.  General Principles – Recycling Centres 
  
(a) The impact of weather on Recycling Centres including safety of access roads and 

walkways, will be assessed daily prior to opening. Centres will open as soon as 
possible (eg after snow is cleared, gritted as appropriate and assessed as 
sufficiently safe for staff and public access).   

  
(b) Updates will be publicised at least daily using websites as well as local and social 

media. 
  
(c) Residents will be directed to Recycling Centres as an alternative if they are unable 

or reluctant to wait for the next collection of black bag waste or recycling.  
 

  
4. Communications  
  
(a) As noted above, each partner will have detailed messages to residents as events 

unfold. However there are advantages in establishing and communicating 
consistent basic messages across the JWC partners.  

  
(b) A meeting of lead communication personnel from each authority has therefore 

been arranged at the beginning of November with the aim of agreeing a common 
communications strategy which can be used across the JWC partners. This action 
is being facilitated by the Joint Waste Team. Other GWP partners are welcome to 
be included if they have adopted or are about to adopt similar principles. 

  
(c) Other GWP partners are welcome to be included if they have adopted or are about 

to adopt similar principles. 
  

 
5.  Status of Process Approval by Partner Authorities  
  
(a)  Cheltenham BC 

The new CBC emergency collection policy which includes the detailed prescribed 
actions is drafted and will shortly be submitted for approval by the Cabinet Lead. 

  
(b) Cotswold DC  

CDC’s emergency waste collection policy has been updated and has had Cabinet 
approval from the Portfolio Holder  

  
(c) Forest of Dean 

FODDC’s policies have been approved 
  

Page 21



(d) Gloucestershire County Council  
There have been no major issues with or changes to the Recycling Centre policies 
but, like the others above, these will remain open to review following any further 
events.  

  
6.  Further Information  
  
(a) Detailed policies are available on each partner’s website (for CBC these will be 

added shortly after final approval). A signpost to the appropriate links will be 
placed on the Recycle for Gloucestershire website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Draft Press and Publicity Protocol
	Agenda item 6 - Draft PP Protocol 221013

	7 Overview of Severe Weather Arrangements

